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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Respondent’s latest proffered evidence, consisting of statements submitted from
Patricia E. Bena, Joseph 8. Novak, Caroles Medico Olenginski, and Sandra M. Brulo, does not
constitute “after-discovered evidence® under established law and does not metit the granting of
an evidentiary hearing to further review such evidence or its affect on the Court’s determination
fo remove the Respondent from judiclal office,

The proffered statements are neither sxculpatory, nor would they compel a different result
if Respondent were granted a new trial. Further, for some of the proftered evidence, it is
manifest the Respondent would be unable to demonstrate that it could not have been obtained at,
or prior to, the conclusion of her trial by the exercise of reasonable diligence. At most, this latest
proffered evidence i3 commlative, or would be used solely for impeachment of credibility, both
improper foundations for overturning a court decision, granting a new trial, or justifying the
halding of an evidentiary hearing,

ARGUMENT

I. THE RESPONDENT HAS FAILED TO PRESENY “AFTER-DISCOVERED
EVIDENCE? MERITING THE GRANTING OF AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING.

Preliminarily, the Board incorporates its originally filed Brief dated April 27, 2009, in
response o the Order of Court deted March 27, 2009, and all argument set forth therein
addressing Respondent’s “after-discovered evidence,” as part of this Brief,

In order to obtain relief in the form of a new trial based on “after-discovered evidence,”
Pennsylvania common law requires a petitioner to establish that such evidence

1) has been discovered after the trial and sould not have bean obtained at or prior to the
conclusion of the trial by the exercise of reusonable diligence;

2) is not merely corcoborative ot cumulative;

3) will not be used solely for impeaching credibility of a witness; and

4) is of such a natore and character that « different verdict will likely result if a new wrial is
granted, '



Commonwealth v. Valdertama, 479 Pa, 500, 388 A.2d 1042 (197 8)- (hereinafier “Valderrama™;

Commaniwealth v, Washingfon, 592 Pa. 698, 927 A.2d 586 (2007); Commonweatth v. D’ Armato,
379 Pa. 490, 519, 856 A.2d 806, 823 (2004); Commonwealth v. Pagan, 397 Pa, 69, 106, 950

A2d 270, 292 (2008); Commonwealth v, Bormack,  PaSuper,  ,  ,827 A.2d 503, 506

(2003}, Commmonwealth v, Rivera,  PaSuper. , 939 A2d 355,359 (2007) ;

Commonwealth v. Cobbs, _ PaSuper. __ ,_ , 759 A,2d.932, 934 (2000); Commonwealth v,

Bonaccurso, 425 Pa.Super, 479, 484, 623 A.2d 1197, 1199 (1993); Commmanwealth v, Galloway,
433 Pa.Super. 222, 227, 640 A.2d 454, 456 (1994), As Pennsylvania law males clear, the legal
standard does not involve the Court welghing 2 nebulons notion of “taint” on proceedings, but
rather specific consideration of certain factors.

Further, statutory awthority for obtaining collateral relief in the form of a new trial based
on “after-discovered evidence” is found ity the Post Conviction Relief Act (“PCRA™), 42 Pa.
Cong, Stat. Ann, §9541 et seq., which requires a petitioner demonstrate by a preponderance of
the evidence that his or her conviction ot sentence resulted from

[tThe unavailability &t the time of trial of exculpatory evidence that has

subsequently become available and would have changed the outcome of

the frial if it bad been introduced.

42 Pa, Conas, Stat. Ann, §9543(b)(vi). The key components of this provision require that “after-
discovered evidence” be (1) exculpatory, and (2) such that it would have changed the cutcome of
trial had it been introduced.

Penngylvania law defines exculpatory evidence as “evidence which extrinsically tends to
establish defendant’s innocence of the crimes charged, as differentiated from that which,

although favorable, is merely collateral or impeaching.” Commonweglih v, Gee, 467 Pa, 123,

131,354 A.2d 875, 878 (1976) (quoting People v. Bottom, 76 Ms. 2d 525, 351 N, Y,8.24 328,




334-335 (1974)), overruled on other grounds, 510 Pa. 123, 507 A.2d 66 {1986, Commonwealth

v. Hicks, 270 Pa.Super. 546, 550, 411 A.2d 1220, 1222 {1979); Commonwealth v. Fudgens, 400

Pa,Super. 79, 87, 582 A.2d 1352, 1361 (1990); Commonwealth v. Waison, 355 Pa.Super. 160,

512 A.2d4 1261 (1986) ; Commonwealth v. Lambert,  PaSuper. __, 765 A.2d 306, 325
n.15 (2000).

Following the conelusion of the 50-day period granted the Respondent to investigate and
produce “after-discovered evidence” conpecting the scandal in Luzerne County to her trial, #n
support of her request for an evidentiary hearing the Respondent filed of record four (4) witness
statements. As will be discossed below serfatim, none of the proffered statements provide
evidence qualifying as “after~discovered evidence.”

Ay Patricia E. Benzi

Benzi is a security guard at the Luzerne County Courthouse.

First, the Board notes that If Benzi were called to testify at an evidentiaty heating, ot a
new trial, her statement indicates some of the information she would provide would constitute
hearsay. Sevond, if the information provided is accepted as true, it establishes the following:

= Between 2003 and 2006, on 10-20 occasions, Benzi delivered to Judge Conahan
plain sealed envelopss from reputed mobster Billy D*Elia, which Judge Conahan
aocepted.

s At an unknown date, Benzi delivered to Judge Lokuta’s tipstaff, Maurech
Gusharas, a sealed envelope for Judge Lokuta from Billy ’Blia. The envelope
had Judge Lokuta name written on it. Later that same morning, Gushanas,
seemitg angry, returned to Benzi the envelops and stated, “You sell him, my
Judge isn’t like the resi of these Judges!” Benzi took the envelope back.

o At an unknown date, D’Blia associate Robert Rulick invited Judge Lokutato a
party to “make peqce” (about what is not explained) with Judge Conahan and

Judge Lokuta refused 1o aitend.

s At an unknown date, Kulick told Benzi it would be in Judge Lokuta’s inferest to
“mend things” (what needed “mending” is not explained) with Judge Conahan.



s Atan unknown date, Kulick asked Benzi to find out why Judge Lokuts was
meeting with the FBI,

o At unknown dates, Kulick repeatedly told Benzi that Judge Conahan indicated
that if Judge Lokuta would apologize (for what is not indicated), he would make
“"everything go away” (to what “everything” referred is not explained).

First, the information provided by Benzt fails to meet the test for “after-discovered
evidence” because the Respondent cannot establish that such information eould not have been
obtained at or prior to the conctusion of her trial by the exercise of reasonable diligence.

Prior to charges being filed against the Respondent, in her May 23, 2003, letter (admitied
trial exhibit R-1134) responding to the Board's Notice of Full Investigation, Respondent
referenced Benzi to the Board. Specifically, at the end ofher letter the Respondent povided a
list of one hundred and nine (109) individuals “who should be interviewed” as having
information pertinent to the clafms against het being investigated by the Board. At number seven
{7) on her list, the Respondent referenced “Patty Benzi, seourity guard o/o Luzerne county
Coutthouse.” Though the Board specifically requested in its Notice of Full Investigation that the
Respondent provide a proffer as to what any such referred witness would tell the Board relevant
to the claims it had investigated, the Respondent provided nothing,

In fact, the Respondent made no reference to Benzi delivering a sealed envelope to her
from Billy D'Ela or her refection of it through Gushanas. At no time did the Respondent ever
tnake known to the Board, or the Court, that she had been presertted with a sealed envelope from
Billy D’Elia or that she was invited by Kulick to a party to “make peace” with Judge Conahan,
The Respondent never testified that she acted as a courthouse whistleblower about this activity,
ot that she knew or suspected other judges of recelving such envelopes froma Billy D’Elia, or
about any activity involving a kickback scherme with the new juvenile detention facility and

Judges Conahan and Ciavarslia,



While the Respondent now postures that Benzi is necessaty to her case, she faited o
import Benzi to her subsequent trial withess list and never called her as a trial witness. Itis
mantfest, however, that Respondent kaew of the existence of this witness ptior to her 2007-2008
ttial, and, as evidenced by Benzi’s statement, was aware prior to her trial that D’Elia, through
Benzi, had attempted to give her a sealed envelope, which she refised to sccept. Her then
tipstaff, Mauresn Gushanas, on the Respondent’s behalf, angrily refurned to Benzi the envelope
with a statement that the Respondent was not Bke “the rest of these judges, ™ possibly indicating
the Respondent may even have been sware that other judges received envelopes from D’Elia.
Nonetheless, the Respondent chose not to call Benzi as a trial witness. Had the Respondent been
unaware, at or priorto the conclusion of her trial, of all information Benzi now relates in her
statement, Respondent fatled to exercise reasonabls diligence to undercover it,

Second, had Benzi’s information been introduced at trial, it is not exculpatory in any way
and does not corroborate the Respondent’s defense that Board witnesses conspired to fabricate
evidence of judicial misconduct about her. Benzi’s information is not of such nature or character
that a different verdict would likely result from it if presented af 4 new trial. 'When juxtaposed to
the mountain of avidence presented by all Board witnesses, at most, Benzi’s information is

merely cumulative evidence that the Respondent and Judge Conghan were not getting along,
which both testified about at trial,

The hearsay statement that Judge Conahan indicated he would make “everytiing go
awzy” also does nothing to corroborate Respondent’s defense that Board witnesses conspired to

fabricats evidence of judieial misconduct about her. If by “evarything,” a term which is neither

~ defined or explained, Kulick was referring to the Board’s investigation, something not

established by Benzi’s statement, such information, if true, would do no more than evidence a

delusion on the part of Judge Conahan that he had any power to dictate how twelve (12)
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members of the Judicial Conduct Board, half appointed by the Governor and half appointed by
the Supreme Court, uitimately voted to resolve pending complaints being investigated against the
Respondent.
B. Josepk S, Novak
As with Benzi, the Board notes that if Novak were called 1o testify at an evidentiary
hearing, or a new trial, his statement indicates some of the information ke wounld provide would
constitute hearsay. Second, if the information provided is accepted as true, it establishes the
following:
o Inlate 2003 or early 2004, Novak was at the Luzsrne County Courthouse and
overheard Judge Conahan and Judge Mark Ciavarella talking about the
Respondent. Novak heard Fudge Conaban say that they “have fo get rid of her,
She is causing problems.” Novak provided no information to explain what
“problems” Judge Conahan perceived the Respondent to be causing.
+ At anunknown date, Chester Brozowski, s former Luzerne County Courthouse
etployee and former Pennsylvania State Polics Trooper, told Novalk that he was
present at & meeling with Judge Conahan, Judge Ciavatella, and Court

Administrator William Sharkey, when Judge Conahan told him they had to get the
Respondent off the bench as she was causing problems by going to the authorities.

+  Atan unknown date, Respondent presided over a hearing on Novak’s case Novak
v, McDaniels, and ruled against Novak on a prelitninary matter. Afterward, Novak
wag approached by a man he believed to be Court Administrator William Sharkey,
who advised he could solve Novak's problem by having the case assigned to
Judge Conshap. Afterward, Novak also complained to the local newspapers about
Respondent. At an unknown date a few months later, Novak appeared before
Tudge Conahag, who called Novak to a sidebar where he gave Novak a “wink”
and said he would be very fair in his case,

The information provided by Novak, as with Benzd, does not mest the test for “after-
discovered evidence.” Novak’s information does not contradict Board withess testimony or
establish that Board withess testimony was false. Tt also does not establish or corroborate the
Respondent’s defense that Board witnesses conspited to provide false testimony at the

Respondents trial and/or that they fabricated incidents of judicial misconduct about the



Respondent as a result of being controlled by Judge Conahan. Further, it does not establish the
Respondent’s inmocence of the Board charges or exonerate her from thema. I is not exculpatory
evidence.

Novak’s statement, if true, that he overheard Judge Conahan tefling Judge Ciavarella that
they “have to get rid of [Respondent], she is cousing problems,” is cumnulative evidence that
Tudge Conahan did not get along with Respondent, perceived her as “causing problems,” and
wanted her gone. In fact, at trial, it was no secret that Judge Conahan wanted the Respondent
gone. He sald as much when hetestified, “/I7: would have been better for me if she never
showed up for work, and I could have assigned the work -, Trial Tr. 470:10-11, Septeﬁber 25,
2008. Novak’s hearsay evidence based on Brozowski is also more cumulative evidence.

Glaringly, bowever, Novak's statement fails to establish that Judge Conahan actually
controlled Board witnesses or 6oeroed or pressured them to commit petjury by fabricating
incidents of judicial misconduet abont the Respondent as part of a conspitacy to assist him
getting “rid” of her. In fact, if Judge Conahan wanted o “get rid” of the Respondent, the
Respondent’s own corxluct and mistreatment of numerous people appearing before her in court,
working for ber, ar working in her couttroom, already provided ample basis to achieve sucha

result. Most importantly, Novak’s information is not exculpatory evidence that would have
changed the outcome of the Respondent’s trial.
C. Carolee Medivo Olenginski
Olenginski ia the former Prothonotary of Luzerne County.
Olenginski provides information whick, if true, establighes the following:

¢ Olenginski was the former Prothonotary of Lizerne County serving immediately
before JiI} Moran,

¢ Dlengingki raviewed Jill Moran®s (tial testimony of September 27, 2007, At trial,
Moran, in part, festified that when she took office in 2002, Moran noticed the
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clerks had a schedule for all judges and then a separate schedule they termed
“spacial judge.” Moran testified that generally, the Prothonotary clerks would
agree among themselves which courtroom they would work in by order of
geniority. The person with the most senjority would choose where they wanted to
go. Because the most senior cletk would always opt not to be Respondent’s cletk,
they used the “special judge” schedule for Respondent’s court, which was a
rotation schedule requiring that someone would have to take a rotation with the
Respondent for one week, Trial Tr. 1186:21 ~ 1189:1-2, September 27, 2007.
Olenginski claims that when shs was Prothonotary, she did not keep a “special
judge” list and to the best of het knowledge, neither did her staff, Olenginski
proffers this information in opposition to Jill Moran’s testimony.

Olenginski claims, again in opposition to Jill Moran’s testimony, that when she
was Prothonotary, Olenginski’s staff respected Respondent as a meticulous jurist
and several preferred to regularly serve as her clerk rather than appear in another
Court, Olenginski identifies four (4) persons who were employed as elerks when
Olenginski served as Prothonotary, namely Mary Nolan, Debra Wakevicz, Lana
Bidwell, and Bonnie La Verdie Brown, as individuals that to the best of her
knowledge regularly requested to serve in Respondent’s court, None of thess
clerks tastified ai Respondent’s trial. She also claims that to the best of her
knowledge, the remaining clerks who served under her never complained or had
difficulties with Respondent.

Olenginski personally never had eny problems with Respondent when she served
as Prothonotary and found her to be a very hardworking, conscientions judge.

As with Benzi, the Respondent is unable {o establish that the information from
Olenginski could not have been obtained at or prior to the conclusion of her trial by the excreise
of reasonable diligence. To the contrary, such information was easily at the fingertips of the
Respondent and known to her.

Prior to charges being filed against the Respondent, in her May 23, 2003, letter (admitted
trial exhibit R~1134) responding to the Beard’s Notlce of Full Investigation, Respondent, a3 she
did with Benzi, referenced Olenginski to the Board, Specifically, at the end of her letter the
Respondent provided a list of ons hundred and nine (109) individuals “who should be
interviewed” as having information pertinest to the clalms against her belng investigated by the
Board, At number three (3) on her list, the Respondent referenced “Carolee Medico, the former

Prothonotary,” Though the Board specifically requested in its Notice of Full Investigation that

9
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the Respondent pravide a proffer as to what aty such referred witness would tell the Board
relevant to the clafros it had investigated, the Respondent provided nothing,

Subseguently, however, the Respondent included Olenginski in her trial witness list. In
her Pretrial Memerandum, the Respondent listed Olengingki as trial witness number fifty-two
(52) and averred she was calling Olenginski for the following reason:

Respondent believes that Ms. Olenginski, fortmer Luzerne County Prothonotary,

may testify concerning Respondent’s conduct of her courtroom and chambers,

supervision of and/or interaction with court personnel, personal staff, legal interns

and/or the gensral public and Respondent’s demeanor and course of dealings with

those who come into contact with her,

In Respondent’s Revised Witness List, Olenginski was relisted as frial witness number £ty
seven (57). Respondent then averred she was calling Olenginski for the following reason:

¥ called, Ms. Olenginski, former Luzerne County Prothonotary, will testify

concerning Respondent’s conduct of her courtroom and chambers, supervision of

ansl/or interaction with court personnel, personal staff, legal interns and/or the

general public and Respondent’s demeance and course of dealings with those who

come into contact with her. In particnlar, if called, Ms. Olenginski will provide

testimony relevant to paragraphs 4, 5, 9, and 11 of the Board’s Complaint,

It s manifest the Respondent considered Olenginski a potential witness on her behalf
long hefore the Board filed a Board Complaint in the Court of Judicial Discipline, and even
Jonger before her trial commenced. Furfher, as the Respondent had been on the Luzerne County
bench since 1992, she would have been well awars that Olenginski had served as the
Prothonotaty prior to the election of Jill Moran.

In substance, Olenginski’s statement, based on her review of Jill Moran’s trial testimony,
is focused exclusively on countering Moran by positing that since Olenginski never personally
had problems with Respondent, or had no knowledge of'a “speclal judge” schedule, or had staff

during her tenure that purportedly preferred serving in Respondent’s courtroom, Moran’s

testimony about what she and her staff experienced during Moran’s temue is somehow suspeot,

10



Olengingki’s information would have been irrelevant to the Respondent’s triak as it is not
directed toward any specific incident involving the Respondent. Further, it cannot even qualify
as impeachment evidence, which by itself again would not constitute after-discovered evidence,
because Olenginski’s statement shows that she had no persopal knowledge of what oecurred
during her successor’s tenure as Prothonotary and could not refite what Moran observed when
Motan was serv.il_:ag as Prothonotary, Olenginski could only testify about what she knew or
obssrved during her own teture, which could not be used to impeach Moran, |

Though Respondent now holds up Olenginski as important to her case, at tiial she never
called her to the witness stand. Further, had the Respondent been unaware of the information
Olenginski now relates in het statement, the Respondent had months to bring Moran's testimony
to Olenginski’s attention for review in ordet to obtain it. Moran gave her frial testimoty on
Septerber 27, 2007, The Respondent did not begln to present her defense until December 10,
2007, and the trial record did not close until Janary 16, 2008, Nonetheless, though she had
ample time to uncover this information, the Respondent failed to act with reasonable diligence,

Most importantly, Olenginski’s evidence is not exculpatory and would not have
exonerated the Respondent from any misconduct testified about by Board witnesses. It would
not change the outcome of the Respondent’s ttisl ifa new trial was gramed and it fails to meet
the legal standard for after-discovered evidence,

D, Sandra M. Bralo

Brulo is the former Luzerne County Deputy Director of Forensic Progtams who was
charged on February 20, 2009, with felony Obstruction of Justice for corruptly altering a juvenile
court file with the Intent to impair the file's integrity for vse in federal proceedings. On Match

17, 2009, Brulo agreed to plead guilty and cooperate in an on-going federal nvestigation, On

il
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Mareh 26, 2009, Brulo pled guilty to felony Obstruction of Justice before U.S, District Court

Judge Bdwin M. Kosik. Brulo’s sentencing is scheduled for October 5, 2009,

Bruio provides information which, if true, establishes the following:

L]

From December 1996 through Qctober 2005, Brulo served as the Luzerne County
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer.

As Chief Juvenile Probation Officer, Brulo routinely questioned what she
considered inappropriate practices of court offices or depariments and her
questions wete “not well received by the power structure of the Luzerne County
Courthouse.” Brulo does not explain what she considered “inappropriate
practices of court affices or depariments. "

President Judge Conahan completely took over hiring and firing of courthouse
employees and department heads were no longer permitted fnvolvement in job
interviews of prospective employees, Brulo wag never asked if she needed mote
staff, but instead notified new staff were being hired and to “find something for
them to do.”

Brulo claims President Judge Conghan conferred with Judge Mark Ciavarella
about hiring the following employees: Nina Mantione-Altavilla; Patrick Roman;
Jarsle Matlowski-MacLunny; Lee Greenberg; Kelly Cesari; Marele Bottley-
Tenussen; Patrick Sharkey; Angela DiMstro-Zera; Katie Gaughan; Ashlee
Gavenus; Josh Oravie; Colleen Flaherty; Lisa Griglock; and Tom Marino, Brulo
explains how these new employees were comnecied to Judge Ciavarella or Court
Administrator William Sharkey as relatives, acqnaintances, friends, or friends of
former employees, None of these new employees festified at Respondent’s trial,

Brulo claims mostly evervone in the Adult Probation Division was telated to
Tudge Conahan or Court Administrator William Sharkey, who are cousing, Atan
unknown date, Brulo claims that Paul McGarry, former Dizector of Probation
Services, who Brulo states was demoted to Human Resources Director by Judge
Ciavarella, told Brulo that “#u the Hazleton Office, you did not have to go fur for
a kidney If you needed a kdney transplant,”

At an unknown date, Brulo claims she was in an elevator with a man (not
identified by Brulo) seeking direction to the Juvenile Probation Office for an
appointment. Brulo asked with whom he had the appointment and the man said
“the Chief” Brulo introduced herself as Chief Juvenile Probation Officer and
agked the nature of the man’s business, He advised he was the new probation
officer, Brulo clairns she Immediately contacted Judge Ciavarella, who told her
Judge Conahan hired the man for the Hazleton office and she should “fusi train
Him and find something for him to do,” though Brelo indicated the Hazleton
office was overstaffed.



in October 2003, Panl MeGarry advised Brulo that President Judge Conahan was
transferring ber to a new position called Deputy Director of Forensic Programs,
Bralo olaiims the new position had “na job description and virtually no dutles.”

At an unknown date, Brulo questioned Judge Clavarella about the transfer. Judge
Ciaverellatold her “the boss, ” referring to President Judge Conahan, wanted to
“shit can" her,

Judge Ciavarella routinely referred to President Judge Conahan as “rhe boss.”

At an unknown date, Judge Ciavarella called Brulo to his chambers, told her “the
boss” wanted to speak with her, and handed her the telephone, Brido claimg
Tudge Conahan screamed at her and accused her of being responsible for Hmiting
new admissions to the new Juvenile Detention Center. Judge Conahan said
Robert Powell hiad bills to pay and the limits were limiting admissfons, Brulo
dented she was respongible for the [imits.

In Jarrsary 2006, after Brulo applied for a position with Childten and Youth
Serviees and copied her letter to Judge Conahan, Judge Conaban called her and
told her to “go away for a month.” Brulo then called Judge Clavarella about what
was going on and he told her she was suspended for a month with pay. Atan
unknown date two weeks later, Brulo was called to a mesting with Judge
Conahan, Judge Ciavarella, and Court Administrator Willlam Sharkey., Judge
Conahan told her she could return to work. At some unknown date 3-4 days later,
Sharkey stopped by Brulo’s office and told her she better watch herself, that she
was asking too many questions, and he hoped she leamed her lesson.

At unknown dates, Brulo claims Shatkey would stop by her office occasionally
and tell her to be carefil about making too many waves, Brulo was also told to
stop atterding meetings of the Chief Juvenile Probation Officers in State College,
Penpsylvania,

At uniknown dates, Brulo claitns Judge Clavarella told her Judge Conahan would
never want anything in writing,

Brulo oleims Luzeme County President Judges exercised complete control and
authority over courthouse employees.

Brulo opines that President Judge Conahan had the ultimate power of running the
Luzeme County Courthouse and employees seemed to fear losing their jobs or
suffering Judge Conaban’s wrath and had to keep in line with his wishes.

Brulo opines Judge Conahan, Judge Cigvarella, and Court Admiristrator Sharkey
operated & “good old boys network” repressive to women.

At an unknown date, Bralo clalms Judge Clavarella fold her she was not “ore of
the boys. "

13



= At unknown dates, Brulo claims Judge Ciavarella continuously asked her to
“dumb down to the boys” so she would not appear too smart,

» Brulo claims Judge Ciavarella made racing bets with Probation QOfficer Tom
Lavan and sometimes collected on them in the couriroom with people present,
including ptivate and public attorneys, and district attorney and coust
administration staff. Brulo claims Judge Ciavarella would sometitnes wear a
racing hat {she does not identify if this cecnrred while on the bench) and Brulo
tried to talk to him about the dignity of the court and Judge Ciavarella told herto

“lightern up. ™

As with Benzi, Novak, and Olenginski, Brula’s statement, too, fails to meet the legal
standard of after-discovered evidence. It is not exculpatory and does not exonerate the
Respondent. ¥ neither coniradicts Board witness testimony, not does it corroborate the
Respondent’s trial defense that Board witnesses conspired to fabricate incidents of judiciel
miseonduct about the Respondent because they were controlled by Judge Conahan. In fact, at
trial, the Board demonsirated that meny of its witnesses, including Respondent's former
employees, Judge Patrick J. Toole, Jt. and witnesses from the Prothonotary, the Luzerne County
District Attorney’s Office, the Sheriff’s Department, and the Public Defendet’s Office, did not
serve af the pleasure of the president judge and the president judge had no authority to hire or fire
them.

Bruio, as an employee over which the president judge did have authority to hire ot
terminate-employment, provides no evidence in her statement that any similarly sttuated
employee outside of juvenile probation who testified against the Respondent had been treated as
Brulo by Judge Conahan, feared losing their job if they did not do as Judge Conahan wished, or
participated in 2 conspiracy to conmnit perjury et Respondent’s trial to assist Judge Conahen. In

faet, to the contraty, at trial, some Board witnesses called on rebutial were confronted with

Respondent’s defonse posture that they were conspiring to fabricate incidents of judicial
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misconduct about her and under the control of Judge Conahan, They were specifically asked
whether they were part of any conspiracy to provide false information about the Respondent,
whether they had been pressured or coerced by any Luzerne County judges to do so, or offered
inducements in the form of county employiment or a better position, or salary increase, These
rebuttal witnesses denied such claim and included Lisa Tratthen {court reporter), Selyne
Youngelaus (former law elerk to Respondent), and Theodore Krohn {former law clerk to
Respondent).

While Brulo’s information may evidence there was nepotism, and cronyism in hiring
individuals in the Luzeme County Court system, a mﬁla prejudice among Judge Conahan, Judge
Clavarella, and Sharkey toward women (1.¢. “the good old boys network’™), that Brulo, as Chief
Juventle Probation Officer, was perceived as problematic in terms of facilitating the
kickback/“cash-for kids” scheme {nvolving the new juvenile detention center, and that Judge
Conahan transferred Brulo to another position as a punishunent for being viewed as a liability in
catrying out the kickback/“cash-for-kids” scheme, it does not become the equivalent that Judge
Conahan controlled Board withesges and mastezminded a conspiracy wherein they agreed to
perjure themselves when testifying about the Respondent’s conduct. No evidence has ever been
presented to support such contention and Brulo’s information does nothing to change that,

The fact is that Board trial witnesses have uniformly stood by their testimony about the
Respondent’s abomingble behavier end conduct ‘t()Wﬂra them and others. Beyond those already
formally charged by federal authotities, Brulo’s information connects no Board witness to her -
expetience with Judgs Conahan or to the kickback scheme/"eash-for kids” scandal In Luzerne
County, and, most importantly, to the conduct at issue in the Respondent’s case. Iftrue, it

illustrates Judge Conahan’s behavior toward a juvenile probation officer perceived as causing
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problems with the facilitation of the kickback scheme/"cash-for kids™ scandal, a scheme fhe

Respondent knew nothing about and provided no information about.

CONCLUSION

The Respondent’s *new” evidence does not congtitute after-discovered evidence which
would justify holding additional evidentiary bearings, overtuming the Court’s Findings of Fact
and Conclusions of Law, or the Court’s imposed sanction of removal and prohibition on future
judipial service,

While the Respondent continues to peddle the notlon that she was a “courthouse
whistleblower” responsible for uncovering the Luzerne County corruption involving Judge
Conahan and Judge Ciavarella being prosscuted by federal authorities, by her own trial testimony
she reflutes this self-proclaimed title, Respondent testified she contacted the federal authorities
“[rjot about Judge Conghan specifically. About docketing.” Trial Tr. 3256:5-6, January 15,
2008. Not only was the Respondent not giving information specifically about Judge Conaban,
she never testified she ever provided any information about Judge Ciavarella or the kickback
scherme involving the new juvenile detention facility, Further, at trial, the Respondent disclaimed
she had any problems with Judge Ciavarella.

Nornetheless, since itial, the Respondent’s conspiracy defense has continued to ¢volve as
she seentingly abendoned the incredible explanations for the conspiracy she provided at trial and
later embraced the theme that it was retaliation for her reaching out to federal authotities and
now included Judge Ciavarella. The Respondent, no doubt, overlooked that federal authorities
did not commeence their investigation into the new juvenile detention center and the role played
in it by Judges Conahan and Ciavarella uniil the summer of 2006, more than two (2) years after

the Board received a complaint filod against the Respondent by her former executive secretary,
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Susan Weber, and approximately seven (7) months after the Board finished interviewing and/or
deposing all Board witnesses and obtained the information used as the basis for its prosecution,

As the Board has said before, it obtained the information about the Respondent’s
misconduct before the federal investigation ever began, To continually elaim that Board
witnesses provided such information in retaliation for events that did not yet oceur, detailed
information shout the Respondent’s misconduct in all its various manifestations which was then
documented in Reports of Intervisw and/or depositions before the summer of 2006, and before
the Respondent’s trial {n 2007 and 2008, {s not only misleading, it is absurd,

it must further be noted thatlno testimony given at Petitioner’s {rial by Judge Conahan,
Judge Ciavarella (vebuttal witness only), William Sharkey, or Jill Moran, about the Respondent,
has been proven false, Infact, some of Moran’s testimony was corroborated by a court transcript
of & specific hearing in which she participated before Petitioner. Judge Clavarella’s very limited
rebuttal testimony, in part, simply dealt with the physical structure and condition of the Peun
Place court facility at the time Petitioner was assigned to it and his expetience handling the same
gourt assignment Petitioner opined was so onerous,

Additionally, while the Respondent continues o devalue evidence provided by numerous
Board witnesses not possessing lofty title ot position in the Luzems County Courf system, giving
the false impression that Judge Conahan, Judge Clavarella, William Sharkey, and Jill Moran
were somehow more Important, “key,” or “principle” 1o the Board’s prosecution, or that the
Board "built their case around these very then (sic) powerfhl, afftuent, well respected people”
(Tr. 51:9-1G, May 13, 2009), she cannot negate the overwhelming mountain of evidence actually
provided by the twerty-seven (27) other witnesses who gave much more detailed testimony about
the Respondent’s conduct, such witnesses including the Respondent’s former parsonal staff.

Arguendo, even if the evidence Respondent proffers from Benzi, Novak, Olenginsk, and
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Brulo, was considered after-discovered svidence, it would not, does not, and cannot obscure that
mountsin of oredible and corroborated evidence from these twenty-seven (27) witnesses,
exculpate the Respondent, or change the outcome of her trial. The criminal condust of Judge
Conahan, juclge Ciavarella, and William Sharkey is a world independent of the Respondent’s
personal behavior and conduct, the heart of the Board's charges against her, which included
having a young law clerkAipstaff, Judith Flaherty, scrubbing the Respondent’s kitchen floor on
hands and knees and beconing a virfual household servant while the Luzerne County taxpayers
paid the tab, Tinally, the Board notes the Respondent®s reference at the May 13, 2009,
hearing, through her counsel, to an anonymous complaint filed with the Board against Judgs
Conahan (See Tr. 68-70, May 13, 2009). Reepondent further raises this issue in her Brief (Page
26), speculating about what the Board may have done with such complaint.

First, as the Respondent is well aware, all matters before the Board are made canfidential
by constitutional mendate, Pa.Const. att, V, §18(a)}(8). Just as the Board could not parade before
the publie any complaints filed against the Respondent that did not became court cases unless she
walved confidentiality, the Board can discuss nothing about matiers possibly filed against other
judges, including Fudge Conahan. Nevertheloss, with complete disregard for this confidentiality,
tho Respondent places such & matter before the public,

In a blatant maneuver to “muddy the water” and manipulate public opinion to believe the
Respondent i3 somehow & vietim and not the perpeirator of misconduct in her own right, the
Respondent injects such information to change the subject from Respondent’s case and her
conduct and the Coust’s task of determining whether she has presented what logally constitutes.
after-discovered evidence, to the subject of what the Board constitutionally would be prohibitsd
from discussing and which, as the Respondent ¢luims she did not file any complaint, would have

no relation to the Respondert ot her personal conduct toward those appearing befote her in court,
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working in her courtroom, or serving on her personal staff,

In Hght of Respondent’s speculation that the Board did nothing with the referenced
complaint against Judge Conahan, the Board has secured a waiver of confidentiality from former
Judge Conahan. The Board avers the following regarding that complaint (Board Exhibit A ~
Second Anonymeus Complaint Received September 28, 2006):

1} An anonymous complaint was initially received by the Judicial Conduct Board, regarding

(then Judge) Michael Conahan, toward the end of the Board’s investigation against Ann

H. Lokuta. The allegations in this anonymous complaint focused on nepotism in the

Luzerne County Cowrthouse,

2) The Judicial Conduct Boatd initiated an investigation of the aforesaid complain.

3}y A second anonymous complaint was received by the Judicial Conduct Board, regarding
former Judge Michael Conghan, which included, tnfer alin, allegations of case-fixing.

4) This complaint was received at the completion of the Board’s investigation of the
Respondent and immediately prior to the fiting of the Board Complaint at [ re dnn &
Lokuta, 3 T 2006,

5) In accordance with the well-established procedures and practices of the Judicial Conduct
Board, the second anonymous complaint referred to in paragraph 3 was forwarded to the
Unftod States Attorney’s Office, Middle Distriet of Pennsylvania, after preliminary
vestigation,

&) ‘The United States Attorney’s Office undertook and continued its investigation of
Conghan, etal. Joseph A. Massa, Jr,, Chief Counsel of the Judicial Conduot Board,
testified before the federal investigative grand jury, on behalf of the Unifed States
Attornegv’s Offics.

The above practice was in accord with the Board’s policy and practice when it teceives
allegations of criminal conduct of a judicial officer. The matter regarding former Judge Conahan
remains deferred pending completion of the ongoing eriminal prosecution of former Judges
Conahan and Ciavarella, who were indicted by a federal grand jury on September 9, 2009,

Assistant United States Attormey Gordon Zubrod, according to news reports published by
the Associated Press and others, acknowledged that the Board had forwarded the complaint to

federal prosecutors. “We got that early on in the case,” Zubrod told the Assoclated Press on
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September 9, 2009, “They were very cooperative with us, There was no hiding the ball.”
(Board Exhibit B - The Associated Press, Report: Pa. board told aboul judicial corruption,
September 9, 2009); (Board Exhibit C - Dave Janoski, Complaint says chlef counsel for
Judicial Conduet Board knew of judge’s ties In 06, September 10, 2009).

The only relevance of the anonymons complaint filed against former Judge Cona]'lan to
Respondent’s matter is in the context of the substance (the allegations) as any of them have bom
out in the federal prosecutions, namely the kickback scheme/“cash-for-kids” scandal, and how
the Respondent can qualify anything from that scandal as after-discovered evidence as per the
Supreme Court’s remand order. Thus far, the Board maintains the Respondent has failed to
make any connection that would satisfy this legal standard.

Therefore, for all the above stated reasons, this Honorable Court should find the
Respondent’s evidence does not qualify as after-discovered evidence, does not merif the granting
of further evidentiary hearings, and does not affect the existing determaination that the

Respondent committed judictal misconduct and was appropriately removed from office.

DATE; September 10, 2009

Pa. Supreme ourtID No. 76540

Judicial Conduct Board

601 Commuonwealth Avenue
P.O. Box 62525

Havrtsburg, PA 17106
(717234-7911
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

COURT OF JUDICIAL DISCIPLINE

Inre:
Anx M. Lokuta,
Judge of the Coutt of Common Pleas;

Eleventh Tudicial District : 37D 06
Luzerne County :

VERIFICATION
1, Francis J. Puskas IT, Deputy Chief Counsel to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Judicial |
Conduct Board, verify that I am authorized to make this verification on behalf of the Board and that
the statements made in the foregoing Judicial Conduet Board’s Brief are frue and correct to the best
of my knowledge or information and belief and are made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. Cons.

Stat. Ann, §4904, relating to unsworn falsification to anthotities.

Respectfully submitted,

DATE: SBeptember 10, 2009

Pa. Supteme Court 1D No. 76540

Judieial Conduct Board

601 Commonwealth Avenue
P.O. Bax 62525

Harrisburg, PA 17106

(717 234-7911
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EBELY

SEP 28 2006

Pennsylvania Judicial Conduct Board
Pennsylvania Place
301 Chestret Street

%ﬁsﬁé‘g, Pa, 17101 , SUDICIAL CONDUCT BOARD

Attention; _
Joseph A. Massa, Jr., Bsquire
Chief Cotnsel

A compleint against Jodge Michael Conahen, President Judge of the Luzeme County
Count of Common Pleas, is filed based upon the following:

1. ‘J"udge Conahan has used his judicial authority and power of appointment to
benefit his family and friends and to contain and destroy his detractors,
Examples of this:

A, Within the past months, he appolnted his nephew, James DeJoseph, son of his
sister, Prula , to service as a probation officer in the Hazelton office. In order
to rnake room for his nephew, he directed, through chief officer, Kris Correll, to
te-agsign a probation officer, named Joseph Farinella under the guide that
Jogeph Farinella had done something inappropriate, Kris Coreell is the girl-
friend of William Sharkey, Court Administrator of Luzerne County,

William Sharkey is also a blood relative of Judge Conahan, Patrick Sharkey,
son of William Sharkey, was sppointed by Judge Michael Conahan to the
probation department, as well as his davghter, Stacey Sharkey, to administrative
aide in the probation department. Maty Beth Sharkey, also daughter to William
Sharkey, has worked as an intern in the Courts, Judy Piscura, the sister of
William Sharkey's wife, works in the Hazelion probation depatiment..

Debra Shadkey, wife of William Sharkey, sits on the board of Northeastern
Pennsylvania Hospital and Higher Education Aufhority,

B. Appointed his brother-in-law, Donald Tedesko, husband of his sister, Theresa,
and former high-level employee to Louis Pagnottd, Ifl, 1o & posttion with Court
Administration,

C. Judge Conahen regularty hears matters in support which have been decided
by Master in support, Paula DeJoseph. Paula DeJoseph is his sister but, Judge
Conahan never discloses this fact o the litigants in support who appear
before him and are appeeling his sister’s decisions.

D. In furtherance of his employment scheme, he has devised a 2" tier of
Court-House employees who he terms “Tipstaffs”, who are under his
direct control and only answer to him,  The funding of these positions comes
from monies which are never made available to the public for review.

E. Heappointed his fidend, Magistrate Kanes’s son, Jared Kane, to one such

- EXHIBIT




“Tipstaff” position and allowed him to continue to be employed even though i
Kane was a frequent no show and offen came to work intoxicated, E

Harold Refowich, a longstanding Hazelton friend of the Conahan Family, has
also been placed in one such position, with undefined job functions,

He allows Deputy Court Adnuinistretor to maintain a full tlime position with the
Courts even though he also maintains & full time undertaking business and is the
sole licensed undertaket in that business. As a result of this, Deputy Court
Administrator, P.J, Adonizio, is infrequently at work and is provided a pager and
cell phone to allow for his appeating to be present even when he is officiating

at burials. The Conahen Family also is engaged in the funeral home business.
William Sharkey is aware of the business function of P.J.Adonizio and condones
this practice. P.J, Adonizio {s also officially designated as “Director of Personnel
Services” for the Court,

Judge Conahan also falsely creates new titles for Courthonse employees in
ordei to appear {0 comply with Supreme Court Directives, sven though the
Employee’s functions remain the same, He also engages in political activities.
Examples of this: '

Attorney Louis 8, Sclandra, who prectices civil and criminal law was previously
named 28 a law clerk by Judge Conahan at the salary of $36, 000 . When the
law clerk changes were mandated by the Penngylvania Supreme Court, o take
effect in September 2003, Judge Conahan entered an order on August 25, 2003,
re-titling Sofandra to Counsel to the Court Administrator, This scheme allowed
Sciandya to continue to be paid by the Court budget as a law clerk and continue
in his previous function. Both William Sharkey, and Peter Adonizio, as Director
of Personne! Services for the Cougt agreed to and joined in on this employment
geam,

A glaring example of how blatant is the misuse of Court employees was shows in
criminal Nos. 2700 of 2006 and 2701 of 2006, Commonwealth v, Hugo M.
Selenski ard Paul R.Weakley, whete Attorney Lonis Sciandra who openly
practices before the Criminal Division of Luzetne County filed a motion to quash
the subpoena, which was {ssued to William T Sharkey, Court Administrator,

In the Selenski recusal matter, when the Cowt Repotters were served subpoetias
by Luzetne County Detective Gary Capitano, they refused to comply with the
subpoena and directed the District Attorney’s Office that-they were told not to do
50 by Judge Conahan. The reporter was Kris Ann Radginski. Previously, when
court reporters and court staffers were given unawthotized pay raises by Judge
Conaban, Judge Conahian provided his Chamber as the place for the personnel
o meet to disouss suing Controller Steve Flood.

Judge Conahan encouraged his senior faw oletk, Barbara Nause to ryn for District

2



Magistrate Barilla’s seat and, while ostensibly he gave her a leave of absence
from her position, she continued to receive benefits through the County. Upon
her defeat, she was re-instated to her former salary without set off,

Judge Conahan, who presides in Domestic, Civil and Criminal Court, routinely
allows his law clerk, Sam Falcone to practice in Civil and Criminal Cowrt in
Luzeme County before Judge Conahan and other Judges. Judge Conahan also
allows Attorney Falcone to serve as Criminal Conflict Counsel and appoints
Attorney Falcone to serve as Master in master hearings in Luzerne County.
Attorney Falcone has even appeared before Judge Conahan in Drug Court.
Attorney Falcone also served on the Luzerne County Flection Board.

Attorney Nause is also allowed to practice in Criminal Court in Luzerne

County in her capacity as Solicitor to the probation department. Judge Conahan
placing Barbara Nause in the magisterial race is not an isolated example of

his active involvement in politics, At a recent gathering of the Lower Luzertne
County Bar Association, Judge Conahan openly stated, “ If anyone is interested
in running for Judge in Luzeme County, see me.” ‘This was witnessed by several
other individuals other than lawyers.

He nses his association with the Community Bank, where he serves as a director
1o his advantage with young attorney’s by offering them finameial help in the
form of loans.

He hites individuals to serve as full time Tipstaffs for visiting Senior Judges and
allows Senior Judge Toole to maintain a full time Secretary and Tipstaff even
though Judge Toole is not working fall time in Luzerne County.

Instead of utilizing some Judges of the 11% Judicial District, he routinely uses
Senior Status Judges in domestic cowtl matters, while the Judges of Luzerne
County have the summer months off in what he schedules and terms
“Individual Court Scheduling Weeks.”

He routinely hears matters presented by Attorneys with whom he has close
personal and longstanding business and friendships and refuses to recuse himself,
In fact, it is his practice to direct William Sharkey to switch cases, which are
asgigned to other Judges when the litigants or the Attorneys are his friends,
Examples of this:

Molly Sheridan is the PFA Coordinator of Luzerne County, She received this
promotion by Judge Conahsn, In 2003, Miss Sheridan was arrested for a “DUI”
the case was heard by Magisirate Kane and thrown out, The Wilkes-Barre
Police Department took issue with this appeal of Miss Sheridan’s Liconse
Suspension for refusing to submit to a blood test was filed in Luzerne County.
The case was assigned to Judge Lokuta, On the day before it was to be heard
by Judge Lokufs, William Sharkey tock it away from Judge Lokuta and jt
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was asgigned to Judge Conahan. Judge Conahan, in a closed proceeding, where
the courtroom doors were Jocked end the press was not even allowed in, granted
Miss Sheridan’s appeal and her license wete not suspended. No, 2665-C-2003,

Another case similarly disposed of by Judge Conahan was Wilkes Barce School
Director, Brian Dunn’s DUI case where Judge Conahan raled without conducting
a cowurt hearing,

Judge Conaban in his capacity as President Judge, appoinfed Mike Butera as a
Mental Health Hearing Officer. As such he is responsible to conduct mental
health commmitrent hearings and present commitment orders to Judge Conaban

- for his review and signature. In essence, he is a staffer to Judge Conahan. Yet,

Attorney Butera routinely appesrs befote Judge Conghan in Custody and Civil
and Criminal matters and Judge Conahan never discloses his association with
Attorney Butera to opposing Counsel or the litigants,

Judge Conahan presided over a Trial, Buteta vs. Paranich and Donshue-

2165 of 2000 in which Attorney Mike Butera, as plaintiff, was awarded
$832,990 and 898,462 in delay damages. This Trial was a Bench Trial

withowt & Fury and it highlighis how cotrupt Judge Conghan is, Judge
Conahan refused to recuse kimself without a hearing in the recusal motion.

He failed to disclose that he routinely meets ex-patte with Attorney Butera,
early in the morging. As an insight to Attorney Butera’s character in the 1980’s
when he was employed as an Assistant District Attorney to Judge Chester
Murosld, he was fired because he wrote a letter of support on District Attorney
Stationery, for Mob Boss, Russell Buffaline, who was under indictment in
Fedezal Court.

Attorney Butera and Judge Conalian have been “watched” meeting carly in the
morning in the company of William D*Elia, who is currently under Federal
Indictment for Drug Money Laundering, This case alse involves the Perjury
Indictment of Louis Pagnotti, IIT,

Jadge Conzhan’s closest fiiends are Jodge Mark Ciaverella and Robert Powell.
These men have been seen frequently together in Penmsylvania and Florida.
Yet, Judge Conahan sontinnes to preside in cases where Attorney Powell and
his associates are Plaintifs Counsel and Judge Conahan never discloses the
close personal association, which he shares with Attorney Powell.

Examples of this:

Hrumiuk vs, Schoecken Gost 6569-2001
Sirams vs. Querei 3532-C-2001

Cove vs. Cooper Tire 6182-C-1996
Brennan vs. N.E. Counseling 4989-C-1995
Pauavlkas vs. Poco-Wren 5227-C-1969



Attorney Robert Powell is co-owner of the Luzerne County Juvenile
Detention Center. When Judge Conahan became President Judge, he
assigned Judge Ciaverella to Juvenile Court, while in the past, Fuvenile
Court responsibilities were shared among Judge Muroski and at tiines,
Judge Lokuta. A stringent pattern of placement in the Powell owned
facility can be readily revealed by reviewing Judge Ciavarella’s placements.
In the past, the other Judges placed in a variety of Facilities including
Camp Adams.

Frequently, Judge Conahen, whose closeness to Judge Clavarella is so
great that he purchased a house next to his, will designate Judge Claverella
to act ag President Judge, even though there is no provision for thiy practice
in the Unified Court System. of Pennsylvania,

Tudge Claverella’s clildren have been given access to Attorney Powell’s
Florida Condo and Judge Conahan and Judge Claverella and William
Sharkey and the Judges® Staffers have nlso been piven access fo Atiorney
Powell’s Condo and to his yateh, “REEL JUSTICE.”

Attorney Powell’s cases are froguently assigned through order of Judge
Conahan to Judge Ciavarella, This task is usually seen to by the Court
Administrator, William Sharkey.

BExamples of this:

Holling vs. Lovrinic 1733-C.2000
Mancini vs. Rotary Lift 4078-C-2001
Wanser vs, Cannadozza 4771-C-2000
C.T.81 va. MT Marketing 6770-C-2001
Koreyva vs. Eight Bees 2945-(-1999
Sando vs. Fritzengertown 1249-C-1999
Gliem: vs, PPL 6184-C-1096

Judge Ciavarelia never discloses his cloge ties to Attorney Powell to either
the Litigants or the opposing Counsel, At times, Judge Conahan will also
direct cases of Attorney Butera’s to Judge Ciavarella, especially when a high
profile Plaintiff may be involved who could be linked to Judge Conahan.
Bxamples of this:

Carpinet vs. Janogky 2619-C-2004
CT81 va. MT Marketing 6770-C-2001
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Judge Conahan has also directed that certain cases involving Judge
Clavarella’s close golfing and traveling friend, John Tetrana, be

taken away, by Sharkey from one Judge and “Bench Tried” by Judge
Ciavarella, Judge Ciavarella never discloses his elose association with
Attormey Terrana,

Examples of this:

Kamus vs, State Farm 6262-C-2000

in the case of Louis J,Pagnotti, I, the coal company heir, who had been
seen in the company of Judge Conahan socially, it was determined that
William Sherkey would assign part of Pagnotti’s cass to Judge Ciavarella

for disposition and, if a plea would result, it would be pled before Judge
Conahan. At no time in the plea proceeding did Judge Conahan disclose

that Pagnotti employed Judge Conahan’s Brotherin-law, Don Tedesko,

and that Pagnotl was in attendance at Judge Conahan’s Amnual get togsihers,

Once he assigoed himself to Orphan’s Cowt, Judge Conahan began making
Masters Appointments besed solely upon his polftical affiliations without
regard 1o the appoiitee’s knowledge of Doruestic law or experience in
Domestie Litigation. He has repeatedly appointing members of the Buffalino
law fifm to such positions, Attorney Mark and Attorney C.J. Buffalino
recedve the lion’s share of Court Appointments. Atforney O’Domnell whose
husband was his campaign aide, teceives appointments as well. Judge Conahan
has little regard for women lawyers unless they meet his criteria of physical
aftraction and demure personality traits. :

Examplas of this:

When he becams President Judge, he immediately fired two seasoned women
lawyers, Attorniey Marsha Basco and Attorney Molly Hanlon, While both

were expetienced lawyers, they are heavy set and very ouispoken. Judge
Conahan who frequents the *Champagne Room™ of the White Haven, Pa.
Uentlemer’s Club, the “Pleasure Dome”, has openly carried his patronizing
gttitude toward women, 1o his Fudicial function and had been beard openly
commenting about sertain women professionals in a sexist fashion, including

the use of valgarities when referring o another member of the bench. His
comments have boen overheard and remarked about throughout the Courthouse,
The positions previousty occupied by Attorney Hanlon and Attorney Basco

wers fitled by Judge Conshan by appoeinting members of the Buffalino law

firm to also gerve as law clerks to the Senior Judges. The Senfor Judges hear Civil
arel Custody Matters, and at times, Criminal Matters, VYet, the Buffalino brothers
cotitinue to practice in the Civil, Criminal and Domestic Courts of the 11®



Judieial District despite the fact, that they are law clerks. Judge Conaban
recently had one such Civil matter re-assigned to him becanse C.J. Buffalino
was the Plaintiff’s Attorney; this case was:

Meokeefrey 629-2006

Judge Coneharn also engages in having cases assigned to him by William
Sharkey when his Banking Friend’s Sons are involved in cases. In the Byls case,
Peter Moses, Son of Attorney John Moses, who sits on the Commmumnity

Bank Board of Directors with Judge Conahen, was the Attorney of record.

Peter Moses is also Solicitor to Prothonotary, Jll Moran, who is a Pastoer

in Attorney Robert Powell’s law firm.

Another example of Conahan’s practices involving both the Buffalino
Family and sons of his Bankiag buddies is the case which was being
litigated by Attorney Girard Mecadon

Vanesko 8009-C-2000

In complete disregard of the ethical considetation and the Pennsylvania
Supreme Court’s prohibiting the allowance of law elerks to practice before
the Court by whom they are employed serves, Judge Conahan Fosters,
Condones and Anthorizes this practics and even allows the clerks to
practice before their owi Judges,

Ixamples of this:

Judge Ciavarella hears Civil, Juvenils and Criminal mattors. His law clarks
are Atftorney Don Rogers and Brian Buffaline who practice before other
Civil and Criminal Court Judges in the 11th Judicial District. Judge
Conahan’s ¢lerk is Attorney Phillips Gelso. Judge Conahans hears Civil,
Criminal and Doirestic cases. Attomey Gelso practices before other
Judges in the 11" Judicial Distriot in Civil and Criminal Coutt,

Judge Clavars!la also has a special law clerk, Attorney Sean McDonough,
Attorney McDonough practices befors the 11% Yudicial Distrist in Civil
Court. In fact, he is currently presenting a case before his own Judge
which was specially placed on Judge Ciavarella’s Docket by William
Sharkey, The case is:

Ingot 4756 of 2006
Attormey McDonough’s law pertners are Attorney James Wetter and
Attorney Patrick Doughetty, Attorney Wetter {s the law clerk to

Tudge Mundy who hears Civil Court. Attommey Wetter appears before
other Judges in Luzerne County in Civil Cases,
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1 have submitted this information to you withowt identifying myself becanse .

I fear retaliation should my ideniity be revealed.

I hope that your Board acts upon these glaring violations of ethics which
are cccurring in the Luzerne County Courthouge,
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

COURT OF JUDICIAL DISCIPLINE

In re:

Ann H, Lokuta,

Judpe of the Court of Common Pleas;

Eleventh Judicial Distriet ! 3JD 06
Luzerne County :

PROQF OF SERVICE

T hereby certify that I am this day serving the foregoing Judicial Conduct Board Brlof upen
the persons and in the manner indicated bolow which satisfies the requirenients of Rule 122 ofthe
Cowurt of Judicial Discipline Rules of Procedure!

Bervice by first class mail addressed as follows:

Ronald V, Santora, Esq.
Bresset & Santora, LLC
1188 Wyoming Avetiue
Forty Fort, PA 18704-4016

George A. Michak, Esg.
P.O. Box 62188
Harrisbarg, PA 17106

Respectfully submitted
X?Z.ﬁ . o —
DATE; September 10, 2009 Fraftis, Pusk

Deputy Chief Cormse.
Pa. Supreme Cowt ID No, 76540
Judicial Conduct Board

601 Commonwealth Avenne
P.O. Box 62523

Harrisburg, PA 17106

(717) 234-7911



Pennsylvamia Judicial Conduct Board
Pennsylvania Place :

301 Chestnut Street

Suite 403

Harrisburg, Pa. 17101

Attention;
Joseph A, Masgse, Jr., Esquire
Chief Counsel -

8EP 23 2006

JUDICIAL CONDLCT BOARD

A complaint against Judge Michael Conaban, President Judge of the Luzerno County

Court of Common Pleas, is filed based upon the following:

1. Judge Conahan has used his judicial authority and power of appointment to
benefit his family eand friends and to contain and destroy his detractors.

Examples of this:

A. Within the past months, he appointed his nephew, James DeJoseph, son of his
sister, Paula , to servioe as a probation officer in the Hazelton office. In order
to make room for his nephew, he directed, through chief officer, Kris Correll, t
re-assign a probation officer, named Joseph Parinella under the guide that
Joseph Farinella had done something inappropriate, Kris Correll is the girl-
friend of William Sharkey, Court Adminisirator of Luzerne County.
William Sharkey is also a blood relative of Judge Conahan. Patrick Sharkey,

son of William Sharkey, was gppointed by Judge Michael Conahan to the

i

probation depattment, as well as his daughter, Stacey Sharkey, to administrative
alde in the probation department. Mary Beth Sharkey, also danghter to William
Sharkey, has worked as an intern in the Courts, Judy Piscurs, the sister of
William Sharkey’s wite, works in the Hazelton probation department..

Debra Shatkey, wife of William Sharkey, sits on the board of Northeastern.
Penngylvania Hospital and Higher Education Authority.,

B.  Appointed his brother-in-law, Donald Tedesko, husband of his sister, Theresa,
and former high-level employee to Louis Pagnott, ITI, to a position with Court

Administration.

C. Judge Conahan regularly hears matters in support which have been decided
by Master in support, Paula DeJoseph, Panla Deloseph is his sister but, Judge
Conahen never discloses this fact to the litigants in support who appear

before him and are appealing his sister’s decisions.

D. In furtherance of his employment scheme, ho has devised a 2" tier of
Court-House emplayees who he tems “Tipstaffs”, who are under his
direct control and only answer 1o hiny, The funding of these positions comes
from monies which are never made available to the public for review.

B.  He appointed his friend, Magistrate Kanes’s son, Jared Kane, to one such
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“Tipstaff” position and allowed him to continue to be employed even though

.. Kanhe was a frequent no show and offen came to work intoxicated,

Harold Refowich, a longstanding Hazelton friend of the Conahan Family, has
also been placed in one such position, with undefined job functions,

He allows Deputy Court Administrator to maintain a full time position with the
Courts even though he also maintains & full time undertaking business and is the
sole licensed underteker in that business, As a result of this, Deputy Court
Administrator, P.J. Adonizio, is infrequently at work and is provided a pager and
cell phone to allow for his appearing to be present even when he is officiating

at burials. The Conahan Family also is engaged in the funeral home business.
William Sharkey is aware of the business fimetion of P.J.Adonizio and condones
this practice. PJ. Adonizio is also officially designated as “Diteotor of Persomel
Services” for the Court.

Judge Conaban also falsely creates new tities for Courthouse employees in
order to appear fo comply with Supreme Court Directives, even though the
Employee’s functions remain the same. He alse engages in political activities.
Examples of this: '

Altorney Louis S. Seiandra, who practices civil and criminal law was previously
named as a law clerk by Judge Conahan at the salary of $36, 000 . When the
law clerk chenges were mandated by the Pennsylvania Supreme Court, to take
effect in September 2005, Judge Conshan entered an order on August 25, 2008,
re-titling Sciandra to Counsel to the Court Administrator. This scheme allowed
Sciandre to continue to be paid by the Court budget as a law clerk and continue
in hig previous function. Both William Sharkey, and Petor Adonizio, as Director
of Personne! Services for the Court agreed to and joined in on this employment

scarm,

A glaring example of how blatant is the misuse of Court employess was shown in
ctiminal Nos. 2700 of 2006 and 2701 of 2006, Commonwealth v, Hugo M.
Selenski and Paul R.Weakley, where Attorney Lounis Soiandra who openly
practices before the Criminal Division of Luzerne County filed a motion to quash
the subpoena, which was issued to William T Sharkey, Court Administeator.

In the Selenski recusal matter, when the Court Reporters were served subpoenas
by Luzerne County Detective Gary Capitano, they refused to comply with the
subpoena and directed the District Attorney’s Office that-they were told not to do
80 by Judge Conahan. The reporter was Kris Ann Radginski. Previously, when.
court reporters and court staffers were given unauthorized pay raises by Judge
Conahan, Judge Conahan provided his Chamber as the place for the petsonnel

to meet to discuss suing Controller Steve Flood,

Judge Conahan encouraged his senior law clerk, Barbara Nause to run for Disirict
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Magistrate Barilla’s seat and, while ostensibly he gave her a leave of absence

- from her position, she continued to receive benefits through the County. Upon

her defeat, she was re-instated to het former salary without set off,

Judge Conahan, who presides in Domestic, Civil and Criminal Court, routinely
allows his law clerk, Sam Falcone to practice in Civil and Criminal Court in
Luzeme County before Judge Conshan and other Judges. Judge Conzhan also
allows Attorney Falcone to serve as Criminal Conflict Counsel and appoints
Afiorney Falcone fo serve us Master in master hearings in Luzerne County.
Attorney Falcone has even appeared before Judge Conahan in Dtug Court.
Attorney Faloone also served on the Luzerne County Flection Board,

Attorney Neuse is also allowed to practice in Criminal Court in Luzetne

County in her capacity &g Solicitor fo the probation department. Judge Conahan
placing Barbara Nause in the magistetial race is not an isolated example of

his active involvement in politics, At a recent gathering of the Lower Luzerne
County Bar Association, Judge Conahan openly stated,  If anyore {s interested
in running for fudge in Luzerme County, see me.” This was witnessed by several

other individuals other than lawyers.

He uses his association with the Community Bank, where he serves as a director
1o his advantage with young attorney’s by offering them finanotal help in the
form of loans.

He hires individuals to serve as full time Tipstaffs for visiting Senior Judges and
allows Benior Judge Toole to maintain a full time Secretary and Tipstaff even
thongh Judge Toole is not working full time in Luzerne County.

Instsad of utilizing some Judges of the 11% Judicial District, he routinely uses
Senior Slatus Judges in domestic court matters, while the Judges of Luzerne
Coundy have the sunumer months off in what he schedules and terms
“Individual Court Scheduling Weeks.”

He routinely hears matters presented by Attorneys with whorn he has olose
personal and longstanding business and friendships and refuses to recuse himself,
In faot, it is his practice to direct William Sharkey to switch cases, which are
assigned 1o other Judges when the litigants or the Atforneys are his friends,
Bxamples of this:

Molly Sheridan is the PFA Coordinator of Luzeérne County. She received this
promotion by Judge Conghan, In 2003, Miss Sheridan was arrested for a “DUI”
the case was heard by Magistrate Kane and thrown out, The Wilkes-Barte
Police Diepariment took issue with this appeal of Miss Sheridan’e License
Suspension for refusing to submit 10 a blood test was filed in Luzemne County,
The case was assigned to Judge Lokuta, On the day before it was to be heard

by Judge Lokuta, William Sharkey took it away from Judge Lokuta and it
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was assigned to Judge Conahan. Judge Conahan, in & cloged proceeding, where
the couttroom doors wete locked and the press was nol even allowed in, granted
Miss Sheridan’s appeal and her license were not suspended, No. 2665-C-2003.

Another case sitilarly disposed of by Judge Conahan was Wilkes Barre School
Director, Brian Dunn’s DUI case where Judge Conaban mled without conducting

a court hearing,

Judge Conehan in his capacity as President Judge, appointed Mike Butera as e
Mental Health Hearing Officer. As such he is responsible to conduct mental
health commitment hearings and present commitment orders to Judge Conahan

- for his review and signature, In essence, he is a staffer to Judge Conshan, Yet,

Attarney Butera routinsly appears before Judge Conahan in Custody and Civil
and Criminal matters and Judge Conahan never discloses his association with
Attorney Butera to opposing Counsel or the litigants.

Judge Conalan presided over a Trial, Buteta vs. Paranich and Dopahue-

2165 of 2000 in which Attorney Mike Butera, as plaintiff, was awarded
$832,990 and $98,462 in delay damages. This Trial was a Bench Trial

without a Jury and it highlights how corrupt Judge Conshan is. Judge
Conrhan refused to recuse himself withoul a heating in the recusal motion,

He failed to disclose that he routinely meets ex-parte with Attorney Buters,
eatly in the morning. As an insight to Attorney Butera’s character in the 1980°s
when he was employed as an Assigtant District Attorney o Judge Chester
Muroski, he was fired because he wrote a letter of support on District Attorney
Stationety, for Mob Boss, Russell Buffalino, who wag under indictment in
Federal Court.

Attorney Butera and Judge Conahan have been “watched” meeting early in the
morning in the company of William D*Elia, who is currently under Federal
Indictment for Drug Money Laundering, This case also involves the Perjury
Indictment of Louis Pagnotti, 111,

Judge Conahan’s closest fiiends are Judge Mark Ciaverella and Robert Powell.,
These men have been sgen frequently together in Pennsylvania and Florida.
Yet, Judge Conahan continues to preside in cases where Attorney Powell and
his agsociates are Plaintiff’ s Counsel and Judge Conahan never disoloses the
close parsonal association, which he shares with Attorney Powell.

Bxamples of this;

Hruniuk vs, Schnecken CGlost 6569-2001
Strrmms ve, Querci 352-C-2001

Cove ve. Cooper Tite 6182-C-1996
Bremnan vs, N.E. Counseling 4989-C-1995
Pauaukas vs. Poco-Wren 5227-C-1999
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Attorney Robert Powell is co-ownet of the Luzeme County Juvenile
Detention Center. When Judge Conahan became President Judge, he
assigned Judge Claverella to Juvenile Court, while in the past, Juvenile
Court responsibilities were shared among Judge Muroski and at times,
Judge Lokute. A stringent pattern of placetnent in the Powell owned
facility can be readily revealed by reviewing Judge Clavarella’s placements.
In the past, the other Judges placed in a variety of Facilities including

Camp Adams.

Frequently, Fadge Conahan, whose closeness to Judge Clavarella is so
great that he purchased a house next to his, will designate Judge Ciaverella
1o act as President Judge, even though there is 1o provision for this practice
in the Unified Court System of Pennsylvania,

Judge Ciavarella’s children have been given access to Attotney Powell’s
Florida Condo and Judge Conaban and Judge Claverefla end William
Sharkey and the Judges’ Staffers have also been given access to Attorney
Powell’s Condo and to his yatch, “REEL JUSTICE.”

Attorney Powell’s cases are frequently assigned through order of Judge
Conghan to Judge Ciavarella, This task is usually seen to by the Court
Administrator, William Sharkey,

Examples of this:

Holling vs. Lovrinic 1733-C-2000
Maneini vs. Rotary Lift 4078-C-2001
Wanser vs. Canuadozza 4771-C-2000
C.T.8.1 vs, MT Marketing 6770-C-2001
Koreyva vs, Eight Bepy 2045-C-1999
Sando vs. Fritzengertown 1249-C-1999
Gliem vs. PPL 6184-C-1996

Judge Ciavarella never discloses hig olose ties to Attorney Powell to either
the Litigants or the opposing Counsel, At times, Judge Conahan will also
direct cases of Attorney Butera’s to Judge Clavarella, espectally when a high
profile Plaintiff may be involved who could be linked to Judge Conahay,
Bxamples of this:

Carpinet vg. Janosky 2619-C-2004
CTSI vs. MT Marsketing 6770-C-2001



Judge Conahan has also directed that certain cases involving Judge
Ciavarella’s close golfing and traveling friend, Joln Terrana, be

taken eway, by Sharkey from one Judge and “Bench Tried” by Judge
Ciavarella, Judge Ciavarella never discloses his close association with
Attorney Terrana,

Examples of this:

Kamus vs. State Farm 6262-C-2000

In the case of Louis J.Pagrott, III, the coal company heir, who had been
seen in the company of Judge Conahan socially, it was determined that
William Sharkey would assign part of Pagnetti’s case to Judge Ciavarella

for disposttion and, if'a plea would tesult, it would be pled before Judge
Conahan, At no time in the plea proceeding did Judge Conahan disclose

that Pagnotti employed Judge Conghan’s Brother-in-law, Don Tedesko,

and that Pagnott] was in attendance at Judge Conahan’s Annual get togethers,

Once he assigned himself fo Orphan’s Court, Judge Conahan began making
Masters Appointments based solely upon his political affiliations without
regatd 1o the appointee’s knowledge of Domestic law or experience in
Domestic Litigation. He has repeatedly appointing members of the Buffalino
law firm o such positions, Attorney Mark and Attorney C.J. Buffalino
receive the lion’s share of Court Appointments. Attorney O’Domnell whose
husband was his campaign aide, receives appointments ag well. Judge Conahan
has little regard for women lawyers unless they meet his criteria of physical
attraction and detnwre personality traits, -

Bxramples of this:

When he became President Judge, he immediately fited two seasoned women
lawyers, Attortiey Marsha Basco and Attorney Molly Hanlon, While both

were experionced lawyers, they are heavy set and very ovispoken, Judge
Conahan who frequents the “Chempagne Room” of the White Haven, Pa.
Centlemen’s Club, the “Pleasure Dome™, has openly carried his patronizing
aftitude toward women, to his Judicial function and had been heard openly
commenting about certain women professionals in & sexist fashion, including

the nse of vilgarities when referring to another member of the bench, His
comunents have been overheard and remarked about throughout the Courthouse,
The positions previously occupied by Attorney Hanlon and Attorney Basco

were filled by Judge Conalian by appointing mentbers of the Buffaline law

firm fo also serve as law clerks to the Senior Judges, The Senior Judges hear Civil
and Custody Matters, and at times, Criminal Matters, Yet, the Buffalino brothers
continue to practice in the Civil, Criminal and Domestic Courts of the 11™



Judicial District despite the fact, that they are law clerks. Judge Conaban
recently had one such Civil matter re-assigned to him because C.J, Buffalino
was the Plaintiffs Attorney; this case was:

Mckeefrey 629-2006

Judge Conahan also engages in having cases assigned to him by William
Sharkey when his Banking Friend’s Sons are involved in cases. In the Byle case,
Peter Moses, Son of Attorney John Moses, who sits on the Compmnity

Baok Board of Directors with Judge Conahan, was the Attorney of record.

Peter Moses is also Solicitor to Prothonotary, Jill Moran, who is a Partner

in Attorney Robert Powell’s law firm.

Another example of Conahan’s practices involving both the Buffalino
Family and sons of his Banking buddies is the case which was being
litigated by Attorney Girard Mecadon :

Vanesko R009-C-2000

In complete disregard of the ethicel consideration and the Pennsylvania
Supreme Court’s prohibiting the allowance of law clerks to practice before
the Court by whom they ate employed serves, Judge Conahan Fosters,
Condones and Aunthorizes thig practice and even allows the clerks to
practice before their owi Judges,

Examples of this:

Judge Ciavarella hears Civil, Juvenile and Criminal matters, His law clerks
are Attotney Don Rogers and Brian Buffalino who practice before other
Civil and Criminal Court Yudges in the 11th Judicial District. Judge
Conahan’s ¢lerk is Attorney Phillips Gelso. Judge Conahans hears Clvil,
Criminal and Domestic cases. Attorney Gelso practices before other
Judges in the 11™ Judicial District i Civil and Criminal Court,

Judge Ciavarella.also has a special law clerk, Atiormey Sean McDonough,
Attorngy McDonough practices before the 11™ Judicial District in Civil
Court, In fact, he is currently presenting a case before his own Judge
which was specially placed on Judge Ciavarella’s Docket by William
Sharkey. The case is:

Ingot 4756 of 2006

Attorney MeDonough’s law partners are Attorney James Wetter and
Attorney Patrick Dougherty, Attorney Wetter is the law clerk to
Judge Mundy who hears Civil Court. Attorney Wetter appears before
other Judges in Luzerne County in Civil Cases.
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I have submitted this informationto you without identifying myself because _

1 fear retaliation should my identity be revealed.

Thope that your Board acts upon these glaring violations of ethics which
are occurring in the Luzerne County Courthouse,
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detention center, the newspaper raperted Wadnesday,

Cenahan and another formar Luzeme County Judgs, Mark Clavarella, were charged In January with
taking $2.6 miilion in payrmoents frapn Robert Powgll, the farmer ca-ownar of PA Child Gore and
Westarn PA Child care; anu Robert Mericle, who bullt the Facflities,

The Judpes inltially sgreed te plend guilty to fraud But withdraw thals pleas tyst month after &
foderal fudge rejected a piea deal,

Fha vonduct boarg forworded the 2006 complaint to federal prosacutors, according to Assitant U5,
Alterney Gordun Zubrod,

! "We got.that early o in the cose,” Zubvod ksid Tha Assoclated Prass on Wednesday, "They weare
| very cogperative with us, Thera was no hising the ball.Y

1's nat clear If the conduct board Itself conducted an investigation, Joseph Massa, the basrd's ehief
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